IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

-

CASE NO.: 78,386

JOSEPH JEROME RAMIREZ,

Appellant,

-VS-

THE STATE OF FLORIDA,

Appellee.

INITIAL BRIEF OF APPELLANT

APPEAL FROM THE CIRCUIT COURT OF THE ELEVENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT OF FLORIDA IN AND FOR DADE COUNTY

LAW OFFICES OF RICHARD HERSCH 2937 S.W. 27th Avenue Suite 301 Coconut Grove, Florida 33133 (305) 445-9800

RICHARD L. HERSCH Florida Bar No.: 305065

Counsel for Appellant

FILED

DEC 22 1993

CLERK, SUPREME COURT

By_____Chief Deputy Clerk

I.

| THE TRIAL COURT ERRED ADMITTING KNIFE MARK COMPARISON EVIDENCE |
|--|
| A. THE TRIAL COURT FAILED TO CONDUCT A FULL HEARING |
| B. THE STATE FAILED TO MAKE AN ADEQUATE SHOWING OF SCIENTIFIC RELIABILITY |

II.

| THE SELECTION AND COMPOSITION OF THE JURY DEPRIVED THE APPELLANT OF HIS RIGHT AND IMPARTIAL JURY UNDER THE FEDERAL AND FLORIDA CONSTITUTIONS |
|--|
| A. THE TRIAL COURT ERRED IN FAILING TO HOLD A PROPER NEIL INQUIRY |
| B. THE TRIAL COURT ERRED IN ALLOWING A RACIALLY DISCRIMINATORY PEREMPTORY CHALLENGE |
| C. QUESTIONS ON WHICH THE STRIKE OF JUROR PULLINS WAS BASED WERE UNCONSTITUTIONAL |

III.

| THE TRIAL COURT ERRED IN ADMITTING EVIDENCE DISCOVERED PURSUANT TO AN INVALID SEARCH WARRANT |
|--|
| A. THE AFFIDAVIT FAILS TO ALLEGE A CRIME |
| B. THE ITEM SEIZED DURING THE SEARCH WERE NOT AUTHORIZED BY THE SEARCH WARRANT |
| C. CRITICAL INFORMATION IN THE WARRANT WAS SUPPLIED BY AN ANONYMOUS INFORMANT WITH NO SHOWING OF RELIABILITY |
| IV. |
| THE TRIAL COURT ERRED IN VARIOUS OTHER RULINGS MADE DURING THE COURSE OF THE TRIAL |
| A. THE TRIAL COURT ERRED IN ALLOWING OPINION TESTIMONY ON BLOOD SPLATTER RECONSTRUCTION BY A WITNESS NOT QUALIFIED |
| B. THE TRIAL COURT ERRED IN ADMITTING AN ARTICLE AND PHOTOGRAPHS ON TOOL MARK COMPARISON |
| C. THE PROSECUTOR COMMENTED ON THE DEFENDANT'S RIGHT TO SILENCE DURING HIS CLOSING ARGUMENT |
| V. |
| THE TRIAL COURT ERRED IN ALLOWING THE JURY TO CONSIDER AND IN ULTIMATELY FINDING THE AGGRAVATING CIRCUMSTANCE THAT THE OFFENSE WAS COMMITTED FOR THE PURPOSE OF AVOIDING AND PREVENTING A LAWFUL ARREST |

VI.

| THE TRIAL COURT ERRED PRECLUDING CROSS-EXAMINATION OF THE |
|---|
| MEDICAL EXAMINER AND ALLOWING TESTIMONY ON IRRELEVANT |
| MATTERS AND AN EXPERT OPINION THAT THE OFFENSE WAS |
| HEINOUS, ATROCIOUS OR CRUEL |
| A. THE APPELLANT WAS NOT ALLOWED TO CROSS |
| EXAMINE DR. WETLI ABOUT THE BASIS FOR HIS OPINION 74 |
| B. DR. WETLI WAS QUALIFIED TO TESTIFY ABOUT PAIN |
| AND SUFFERING IN THIS CASE |
| C. THROUGH DR. WETLI THE STATE INJECTED PREJUDICIAL AND IRRELEVANT MATERIAL INTO THE |
| TRIAL |
| VII. |
| |

VIII.

THE INSTRUCTION TO THE JURY ON THE AGGRAVATING FACTOR OF HEINOUS, ATROCIOUS OR CRUEL WAS UNCONSTITUTIONALLY VAGUE . 88

IX.

| THE TRIAL COURT COMMITTED OTHER ERRORS IN THE SENTENCING PHASE |
|---|
| A. THE TRIAL COURTS INSTRUCTIONS LEAD THE JURY TO BELIEVE THAT THE RESPONSIBILITY FOR DETERMINING THE APPROPRIATENESS OF THE APPELLANTS DEATH RESTED ELSEWHERE |
| B. REFERENCE TO OTHER OFFENSES COMMITTED BY THE APPELLANT WAS ERROR |
| C. THE TRIAL COURT ERRED IN FAILING TO ALLOW ARGUMENT ON THE MITIGATING FACTOR OF LESSER CULPABILITY PURSUANT TO FLORIDA STATUTE |
| \$921.141(6)(d) |
| CONCLUSION |
| CERTIFICATE OF SERVICE |

X.

TABLE OF AUTHORITIES

| CASES PAGE |
|---|
| Alderman v. Austin, 663 F.2d 558 (5th Cir. Unit B 1981) |
| <i>Aldret v. State</i> , 610 So.2d 1386 (Fla. 1st DCA 1992) |
| Atwater v. State, 18 Fla. L. Weekly S496 (Fla. September 16, 1993) 43,86,87 |
| Bates v. State, 465 So.2d 490 (Fla. 1985) 66 |
| Batson v. Kentucky, 476 U.S. 79, 106 S.Ct. 1712, 90 L.Ed.2d 69 (1986) |
| Blue v. State, 441 So.2d 165 (Fla. 3d DCA 1983) 58 |
| <i>Bonifay v. State</i> , 18 Fla. L. Weekly S464 (September 2, 1993) |
| Brown v. State, 526 So.2d 903 (Fla. 1988) cert. denied. 488 U.S. 944, 109 S.Ct. 371, 102 L.Ed.2d 361 (1988) |
| Buchman v. Seaboard Coastline Railroad, 381 So.2d 229 (Fla. 1980) 26 |
| Bundy v. State , 471 So.2d 9 (Fla. 1985) |
| <i>Caldwell v. Mississippi</i> , 472 U.S. 320, 105 S.Ct. 2633, 86 L.Ed.2d 231 (1985) |
| <i>Campbell v. State</i> , 571 So.2d 415 (Fla. 1990) |
| Cannady v. State, 427 So.2d 723 (Fla. 1983) |

| Capehart v. State, 583 So.2d 1009 (Fla. 1991) 72 |
|--|
| <i>Carlton v. State</i> , 449 So.2d 250 (Fla. 1984) |
| Caruthers v. State, 465 So.2d 496 (Fla. 1985) |
| <i>Cheshire v. State</i> , 568 So.2d 908 (Fla. 1990) |
| <i>Chorzelewski v. Drucker</i> , 546 So.2d 1118 (Fla. 4th DCA 1989) |
| <i>Churney v. State</i> , 348 So.2d 395 (Fla. 3d DCA 1977) |
| <i>Clark v. State</i> , 601 So.2d 284 (Fla. 3rd DCA 1992) |
| <i>Coco v. State</i> , 62 So.2d 892 (Fla. 1953) |
| <i>Contreras v. State</i> , 718 P.2d 129 (Alaska 1986) |
| <i>Cook v. State</i> , 542 So.2d 964 (Fla. 1989) |
| <i>Coxwell v. State</i> , 361 So.2d 148 (Fla. 1978) |
| Dailey v. State, 594 So.2d 254 (Fla. 1992) 95 |
| Daubert v. Merrill Dow Pharmaceutical, Inc. U.S, 113 S.Ct. 2786, 125 L.E.2d 469 (1993) 33 |
| Delap v. State , 440 So.2d 1242 (Fla. 1983) |
| Dempsey v. Shell Oil Co. , 589 So.2d 373 (Fla. 4th DCA 1991) |

| Duncan v. Louisiana, 391 U.S. 145, 88 S.Ct. 1444, 20 L.Ed.2d 491 (1968) 49 |
|--|
| <i>Eddings v. Oklahoma</i> , 455 U.S. 104, 102 S.Ct. 869, 71 L.Ed.2d 1 (1982) |
| <i>Endress v. State</i> , 462 So.2d 872, 873 (Fla. 2d DCA 1985) |
| <i>Fead v. State</i> , 512 So.2d 177 (Fla. 1987) |
| <i>Flanagan v. State</i> , 18 Fla. L. Weekly S475 (Fla. Sept. 9, 1993) |
| <i>Fleming v. Kemp</i> , 794 F.2d 1478 (11th Cir. 1986) |
| <i>Foster v. State,</i> 557 So.2d 634 (Fla. 3d DCA 1990) |
| <i>Frye v. United States</i> , 293 F. 1013 (D.C. Cir. 1923) 29,30,33 |
| Garron v. State, 528 So.2d 353 (Fla.1988) 68 |
| <i>Geralds v. State</i> , 601 So.2d 1157 (Fla. 1992) |
| <i>Gillette v. State</i> , 561 So.2d 4 (Fla. 5th DCA 1990) |
| <i>Gilliam v. State</i> , 514 So.2d 1098 (Fla. 1987) |
| <i>Godfrey v. Georgia</i> , 446 U.S. 420, 100 S.Ct. 1759, 64 L.Ed.2d 398 (1980) |
| Gooch v. State, 605 So.2d 570 (Fla. 1st DCA 1992) 41 |
| <i>Gurganus v. State</i> , 451 So.2d 817 (Fla. 1984) |

I

| Haakenson v. State, 760 P.2d 1030 (Alaska App. 1988) 34,35 |
|--|
| <i>Hamilton v. State,</i> 547 So.2d 630 (Fla. 1989) |
| <i>Hardwick v. State</i> , 521 So.2d 1071 (Fla. 1988) |
| <i>Hegwood v. State</i> , 575 So.2d 170 (Fla. 1991) |
| <i>Herring v. State</i> , 446 So.2d 1049 (Fla. 1987) |
| <i>Hitchcock v. State,</i> 413 So.2d 741 (Fla. 1982) |
| <i>Hitchcock v. State</i> , 578 So.2d 685 (Fla. 1990) |
| <i>Illinois v. Gates</i> , 462 U.S. 213, 103 S.Ct. 2317, 76 L.Ed.2d 527, <i>reh'g denied</i> , 463 U.S. 1237, 104 S.Ct. 33, 77 L.Ed.2d 1453 (1983) |
| <i>Jackson v. State</i> , 502 So.2d 409 (Fla. 1986) |
| <i>Jackson v. State</i> , 599 So.2d 103 (Fla. 1992) |
| Johnson v. State, 393 So.2d 1069, 1072 (Fla. 1980) cert. denied. 454 U.S. 882, 102 S.Ct. 364, 70 L.Ed.2d 191 (1981) |
| <i>Lamb v. State</i> , 532 So.2d 1051 (Fla. 1988) |
| Leffler v. Grand Union Company, 409 So.2d 1145 (Fla. 1st DCA 1982) 29 |
| <i>Lockett v. Ohio</i> , 438 U.S. 586, 98 S.Ct. 2954, 57 L.Ed.2d 973 (1978) |

| Lowder v. State, 589 So.2d 933 (Fla. 3d DCA 1991) |
|--|
| Maggard v. State, 399 So.2d 973 (Fla. 1981) 97 |
| Marks v. Marks, 576 So.2d 859 (Fla. 3rd DCA 1991) |
| Maxwell v. State, 603 So.2d 490 (1992) 92 |
| <i>Maynard v. Cartwright</i> , 486 U.S. 356, 108 S.Ct. 1853, 100 L.Ed.2d 372 (1988) |
| <i>McKinney v. State</i> , 579 So.2d 80 (Fla. 1991) |
| Medina v. Variety Children's Hospital, 438 So.2d 138 (Fla. 3d DCA 1983) 62 |
| <i>Mills v. State</i> , 476 So. 2d 172 (Fla. 1985) |
| Milton v. State, 429 So.2d 804 (Fla. 4th DCA 1983) 28 |
| <i>Mims v. State</i> , 581 So.2d 638 (Fla. 5th DCA 1991) 57 |
| <i>Nibert v. State</i> , 574 So.2d 1059 (Fla. 1990) |
| <i>Oats v. State</i> , 446 So.2d 90 (Fla. 1984) |
| Parker v. Dugger, U.S, 111 S.Ct. 731, 112 L.Ed.2d 812 (1991) |
| Perez v. State, 521 So.2d 262 (Fla. 2d DCA 1988) 55 |
| Polakoff v. State , 586 So.2d 385 (Fla. 5th DCA 1991) |

| Porter v. State, 564 So.2d 1060 (Fla. 1990) 83 |
|---|
| Potter v. State, 416 So.2d 773 (Ala. Cr. App. 1982) 29 |
| <i>Quinn v. Millard</i> , 358 So.2d 1378 (Fla. 3d DCA 1978) |
| <i>Ramirez v. State</i> , 542 So.2d 352 (Fla. 1989) 2,21,25,26,27,35,59 |
| <i>Ramos v. State</i> , 496 So.2d 121 (Fla. 1986) |
| <i>Reed v. State</i> , 391 A.2d 364 (Ct. App. Md. 1978) 35 |
| <i>Rembert v. State</i> , 445 So.2d 337, 340 (Fla. 1984) |
| Richardson v. State , 604 So.2d 1107 (Fla. 1992) |
| <i>Riley v. State</i> , 366 So.2d 19 (Fla. 1979) |
| <i>Robinson v. State</i> , 487 So.2d 1040 (Fla. 1986) |
| Rodriguez v. Phillip, 413 So.2d 441 (Fla. 3d DCA 1982) 29 |
| Rogers v. State, 511 So.2d 526 (Fla. 1987) <i>cert. denied</i> , 484 U.S. 1020, 108 S.Ct. 733, 98 L.Ed.2d 681 (1988) |
| <i>Roundtree v. State</i> , 546 So.2d 1042 (Fla. 1989) |
| Ruffin v. State , 549 So.2d 250 (Fla. 5th DCA 1989) |

| Santos v. State, 591 So.2d 160 (Fla. 1991) 82,90 |
|--|
| Sharp v. State, 605 So.2d 146 (Fla. 1st DCA 1992) 63 |
| Shaw v. State, 557 So.2d 77 (Fla. 1st DCA 1990) 77 |
| Shell v. Mississippi, 498 U.S. 1, 111 S.Ct. 313, 112 L.Ed.2d 1 (1990) 89 |
| Sims v. State, 483 So.2d 81 (Fla. 1st DCA 1986) |
| <i>Sochor v. Florida</i> , U.S, 112 S.Ct. 2114, 119 L.Ed.2d 326 (1992) |
| <i>Sochor v. State</i> , 619 So.2d 285 (Fla. 1993) |
| St. Angelo v. State, 532 So.2d 1346 (Fla. 1st DCA 1988) 57 |
| State v. Churchill, 231 Kan. 408, 646 P.2d 1049 (Kan. 1982) |
| State v. DiGuilio, 491 So.2d 1129 (Fla. 1986) 63 |
| State v. Dixon, 283 So.2d 1 (Fla. 1973) 82 |
| State v. Hickson, 18 Fla. L. Weekly S549 (Fla. October 21, 1993) 33 |
| State v. Malone, 288 So.2d 549 (Fla. 1st DCA 1974) 53 |
| <i>State v. Mena,</i> 128 Ariz. 226, 624 P.2d 1274 |
| <i>State v. Neil,</i> 457 So.2d 481 (Fla. 1984) |

| State v. Slappy, 522 So.2d 18 (Fla. 1988), cert. denied, 487 U.S. 1219, 108 S.Ct. 2873 (1988). .39,41,43,44,45,46,47 |
|--|
| <i>State v. Smith</i> , 573 So.2d 306 (Fla. 1990) |
| State v. Tamer, 475 So.2d 918 (Fla. 3d DCA 1985) 54 |
| Stokes v. State, 548 So.2d 188 (Fla. 1989) 33 |
| Stout v. Commonwealth, 376 S.E.2d 288 (Va. 1989) 29 |
| <i>Stringer v. Black</i> , 503 U.S, 112 S.Ct. 1130, 117 L.Ed.2d 367 (1992) |
| Sun Supermarkets, Inc. v. Fields, 568 So.2d 480 (Fla. 3rd DCA 1990) 77 |
| Tarin v. City National Bank of Miami, 557 So.2d 632 (Fla. 3d DCA 1990) 78 |
| Teffeteller v. State, 439 So.2d 840 (Fla. 1993) 84 |
| Thompson v. State, 619 So.2d 261 (Fla. 1993) 85 |
| Tillman v. State, 522 So.2d 14, 17 (Fla. 1988) 39 |
| Town of Palm Beach v. Palm Beach County, 460 So.2d 879, 882 (Fla. 1984 |
| United States Sugar Corporation v. Hayes,407 So.2d 1079 (Fla. 1st DCA 1982)29 |
| United States v. Leon, 468 U.S. 897, 104 S.Ct. 3405, 82 L.Ed.2d 677 (1084) |

| United States v. David, 803 F.2d 1567 (11th Cir. 1986) 43 |
|--|
| United States v. Gordon, 817 F.2d 1538 (11th Cir. 1987) 43 |
| United Technologies v. Industrial Risk Insurers, 501 So.2d 46 (Fla. 3d DCA 1987) |
| Valentine v. State, 616 So.2d 971 (Fla. 1993) 41,46 |
| Vasquez v. State, 491 So.2d 297 (Fla. 3d DCA 1986) 58 |
| Wallace v. State, 442 So.2d 1066 (Fla. 1st DCA 1983) 58 |
| Williams v. State, 249 So.2d 743 (Fla. 2d DCA 1971) 53 |
| Williams v. State, 621 So.2d 413 (Fla. 1993) 43 |
| Witherspoon v. Illinois, 391 U.S. 510, 88 S.Ct. 1770, 20 L.Ed.2d 776 (1968) 48,49,50 |
| Zant v. Stephens, 462 U.S. 862, 103 S.Ct. 2733, 77 L.Ed.2d 235 (1983) 89 |
| Zerguera v. State , 549 So.2d 189 (Fla. 1989) |

FLORIDA STATUTES

| Fla. | Stat. | 90.204 | 8 |
|------|-------|--------|---|
| Fla. | Stat. | 90.702 | 9 |
| Fla. | Stat. | 90.706 | 2 |

| Fla. | Stat. | § | 782.02 | | ••• | ••• | •• | • • | | • • | ••• | ••• | • • | ••• | | • • | • • | . . | | ••• | ••• | • • | • | | | | • • • | 52 |
|------|-------|---|---------|--------|-----|---------|-----|-----|-----|-----|-----|-----|-----|-----|-----|-----|-----|------------|-----|-----|------------|-----|-----|-----|-----|-----|-------|------|
| Fla. | Stat. | ş | 782.03 | | | | | | | | ••• | | | •• | | | | | | | | | • • | •• | ••• | | • - • | 52 |
| Fla. | Stat. | ş | 921.141 | | | | | | | | ••• | • • | | | | | | • • | ••• | | ••• | | | | | | • • • | . 92 |
| Fla. | Stat. | § | 921.14 | l(5) | | ••• | | • • | | | | | • • | | ••• | | ••• | | | ••• | | | • • | | | | | 65 |
| Fla. | Stat. | § | 921.14 | l(5)(| h) | | | ••• | ••• | • • | | | | | •• | | ••• | | | | | • • | • | •• | ••• | • • | | 69 |
| Fla. | Stat. | § | 921.14 | l (6)(| d) | • • | | | | | | ••• | • • | ••• | ••• | | | | | | | | | ••• | | | . 2 | 4,98 |
| Fla. | Stat. | § | 921.141 | (6)(| f). | | | | | | | | | | •• | ••• | ••• | ••• | | | . . | | | ••• | ••• | • • | | . 94 |
| Fla. | Stat. | § | 933.04. | | | | ••• | •• | ••• | | ••• | | | | | | | ••• | | | • • | | | | | | | . 56 |
| Fla. | Stat. | ş | 933.05. | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | | • • | | | | | | | | | . 56 |

CONSTITUTIONAL PROVISIONS

į

| Article I, Section 2, Florida Constitution |
|---|
| Article I, Section 9, Florida Constitution |
| Article I, Section 12, Florida Constitution 55,59 |
| Article I, Section 16, Florida Constitution |
| Eighth Amendment, United States Constitution |
| Eighth Amendment, United States Constitution |
| Fifth Amendment, United States Constitution |
| Fourteenth Amendment, United States Constitution |
| Fourteenth Amendment, United States Constitution* |
| Fourth Amendment, United States Constitution |

OTHER AUTHORITIES

| Thomas M. Fleming, Admissibility of Expert Opinion Stating Whether a Particular Knife Was, or Could Have Been, Used In a Crime, |
|---|
| 83 A.L.R.4th 660 (1991) |
| 1 Am. Jur. Trial § 69-75 (1964) |
| 36 Am. Jur. Proof of Facts 2d. 285-334 (1983) |
| 58 Am. Jur. Witnesses §632 (1948) |

INTRODUCTION

This is a direct appeal by the Appellant, JOSEPH JEROME RAMIREZ, from an adjudication of guilt and sentence of death entered following a jury trial before the Honorable Alfonso Sepe, Circuit Judge, Eleventh Judicial Circuit, Dade County, Florida.

Citations to the record are abbreviated as follows:

R. - Record on Appeal

SR - Supplemental Record on Appeal

SSR - Second Supplemental Record¹

The Appellant will be refered to in the body of this brief as Joseph Ramirez or as Appellant. The State of Florida will be refered to as the State.

STATEMENT OF THE CASE AND FACTS

A. STATEMENT OF THE CASE

An indictment was returned on January 13, 1994, charging Joseph Ramirez with First-

Degree Murder, Armed Robbery and Armed Burglary. R. 2578-80. This case was originally

tried in November, 1984 resulting in the conviction of the Appellant and a sentence of death.

¹ Contemporaneous with this Brief a motion for supplementation of the record with Appellant's motion to suppress, transcript of proceedings addressing the motion to suppress, and the first trial court's findings in regard to sentence are submitted.

Further, a review of volume IX of the record, R.1372-1560, as it exists in the Office of the Clerk, Florida Supreme Court, reveals the absence of five (5) pages from the transcript. (Pages 51-55 as numbered in the upper right hand corner of the page.) Appellant will refer to the transcript as provided in the Amended Index and submits the missing five pages in the second supplemental record.

This court reversed Appellant's conviction and sentence due to the improper admission of evidence identifying a knife found in Appellant's car as the specific knife that caused the wound to the victim. *Ramirez v. State*, 542 So.2d 352 (Fla. 1989).

Upon remand, the State filed a motion to admit knife mark evidence. R. 2628-30. A hearing was held on that motion on January 31, 1991, R. 1-145, and the trial court determined this evidence to be admissible. Appellant sought a writ of mandamus directing the trial court to allow Appellant to present evidence bearing upon the admissibility of the knife mark evidence. R. 2728-30. A ruling on the petition² was not received prior to commencement of trial. R. 150.

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