FILED SID J. WHITE

IN THE SUPREME COURT OF FLORIDA

MAR 25 1994

JOSEPH JEROME RAMIREZ,	CLERK, SUPREME COURT
Appellant,	By Chief Deputy Clerk
v.) CASE NO. 78,386
STATE OF FLORIDA,	
Appellee.	
<u> </u>)

ON APPEAL FROM THE CIRCUIT COURT OF THE ELEVENTH JUDICIAL CIRCUIT IN AND FOR DADE COUNTY, FLORIDA

ANSWER BRIEF OF APPELLEE

ROBERT A. BUTTERWORTH ATTORNEY GENERAL

MARK C. MENSER ASSISTANT ATTORNEY GENERAL FLORIDA BAR NO. 0239161

DEPARTMENT OF LEGAL AFFAIRS THE CAPITOL TALLAHASSEE, FL 32399-1050 (904) 488-0600

COUNSEL FOR APPELLEE

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

After Dr. Wetli gave his qualifications the defense stipulated to his medical expertise (R 2325).

Dr. Wetli then testified that he reviewed this autopsy with the forensic team in 1983 (R 2325), and had thoroughly

familiarized himself with the file in preparing his opinion (R 2325-2327). Dr. Wetli also testified that it is accepted, if not common, practice for a substitute doctor to testify from the first doctor's notes (R 2327).

As a qualified medical expert, Dr. Wetli discussed the medical concepts of "pain" and "suffering" (distinguishing the two) and drew upon his experience and special training with crime victims and euthanasia (R 2328-2332). (Dr. Wetli did not, as misstated by Ramirez, either allege or imply any sexual battery in this case). Dr. Wetli then discussed and described the wounds inflicted upon the victim and the prospect that she suffered great pain or mental anguish (R 2333, et seq). The only defense objection went to the "redundant" nature of the testimony (R 2337).

In fact, on appeal Ramirez properly confesses that Dr. Wetli's testimony was proper. See Capehart v. State, 583 So.2d 1009 (Fla. 1991).

With these facts in mind, we can address the sub-issues presented by the Appellant.

(A) Limitation of Cross

At trial, the defense wanted a recess to research every single homicide in the history of Dade County¹⁴ in order to cross examine Dr. Wetli on his theory that Mrs. Owens suffered (R 2345). This untimely, mid-trial request to do research that

Defense counsel: ". . . I want the opportunity before cross examination to investigate all previous cases from the medical examiner's office so I can confront Dr. Wetli . . . " (R 2345).

could have been done for weeks (as to Dr. Wetli) or months (as to Dr. Harleman, had she testified) was denied.

On appeal, Mr. Ramirez complains that he was not allowed to cross examine Dr. Wetli regarding "other cases", but it is clear from the record that the defense was not prepared to engage in such questioning at the time of the trial. The denial of the continuance has not been appealed and is waived.

Nevertheless, we would note that the right to cross examine any witness is not unlimited. <u>Delaware v. Van Arsdall</u>, 475 U.S. 673 (1986); <u>Bundy v. Dugger</u>, 850 F.2d 1402 (11th Cir. 1988); United States v. Owens, 484 U.S. 554 (1987).

The penalty phase of a capital case focuses upon the details of the crime at bar and the defendant himself, not other crimes or other victims. Cruse v. State, 588 So.2d 983 (Fla. 1988); Herring v. State, 446 So.2d 1049 (Fla. 1984). Thus, the trial judge had absolute discretion to "limit" the defense to relevant issues on cross and to exclude any comparisons of other cases. Cruse, supra; Herring, supra; Rose v. State, 472 So.2d 1155 (Fla. 1985); Smith v. Illinois, 390 U.S. 129 (1968).

(B) Dr. Wetli's Qualification

Once again, Mr. Ramirez has confused the concepts of evidentiary weight and admissibility. Dr. Wetli was a highly qualified medical expert and the decision to allow him to testify to the pain probably created by various wounds was not an abuse

See also Jackson v. State, 498 So.2d 406 (Fla. 1986) (exclusion of testimony from victim's brother regarding disapproval of the death penalty); Jackson v. State, 530 So.2d 269 (Fla. 1988) (exclusion of evidence from Parole Commission regarding other cases).

of discretion. <u>Burns v. State</u>, 609 So.2d 600 (Fla. 1992); Johnson v. State, 393 So.2d 1069 (Fla. 1980); §90.702, Fla.Stat.

If Mr. Ramirez truly embraced a belief system that denied the pain and anguish caused by repeated, non-lethal, stab wounds or bludgeoning with a fax machine, his beliefs could have been tested in court either by cross examination or some presentation by his own expert. The issue of whether there was sufficient evidence to support the expert's opinion, however, was one of weight, not admissibility, Rimmer v. Tesla, 201 So.2d 573 (Fla. 1st DCA 1967), and thus cannot compel appellate relief even if the expert opinion is one with which Mr. Ramirez disagrees.

(C) The State had the Right to Prove its Case

As noted above, the theory of the defense was that the State should not be allowed to offer any penalty phase evidence on the HAC issue. Now the Appellant complains that Dr. Wetli, a medical doctor and board certified forensic pathologist, should not have been permitted to render an expert opinion on the subject of "pain", apparently because he was not also a neurologist 16, and, since, (by extension) only neurologists know whether it hurts to get stabbed. The facial weakness of Mr. Ramirez' position is exacerbated by its failure to recognize controlling law.

Section 90.703, Fla.Stat. declares that an expert opinion is not "inadmissible" simply because it touches upon an ultimate issue. Thus, while Dr. Wetli could not declare Ramirez "guilty", he could clearly assess the damage done to the victim and give an opinion on the issue of pain. For example, in <u>Bloodworth v.</u>

Of course, a special degree is not always required. Allen v. State, 365 So.2d 456 (Fla. 1st DCA 1978).

State, 504 So.2d 495 (Fla. 1st DCA 1987), a medical expert was allowed to give an opinion on the non-consensual nature of sexual activity even though the opinion overlapped the issue of "rape". Even Gurganus v. State, 451 So.2d 817 (Fla. 1984), while cited by Ramirez for the proposition that a doctor could not declare the degree of a homicide, held that that same doctor could address issues of mental capacity, intent or mens rea.

The State had to produce additional evidence that the victim felt pain and actually suffered in order to establish the HAC factor. The victim received blows to the head as well as stab wounds, and the failure to prove she was conscious might preclude a finding of HAC no matter the brutality of the attack. Scott v. State, 494 So.2d 1134 (Fla. 1986), citing Jackson v. State, 451 So.2d 458 (Fla. 1984).

Dr. Wetli was qualified to render such an opinion and was properly allowed to do so. Even so, if the jury could easily have concluded that this crime was one for which the HAC factor applied (simply on the basis of common sense and the guilt phase evidence, as Ramirez argued below,) then any error was harmless. DiGuilio, supra.

POINT VII

THE MURDER WAS ESPECIALLY HEINOUS, ATROCIOUS AND CRUEL

The trial court found that this murder was heinous, atrocious and cruel, stating:

d) This crime was especially heinous, atrocious and cruel. The victim, Mary Jane Quinn, was stabbed in both the hand and the chest with a knife. The stab wound to her hand and other trauma to her hands indicate a desperate attempt to ward off her attacker.

The location of the victim's blood spatters and drippings throughout the small dispatch room support this conclusion. The victim's head was also bludgeoned with a 70 pound facsimile transceiver causing massive trauma. Yet Mary Jane Quinn continued to struggle to survive, crawling out of the dispatch room down a hallway, as evidenced by her bloody handprints on the hallway wall. There in the hallway she met her demise, receiving 10 stab wounds in the back, most of which exceeded five inches in depth. Mary Jane Quinn lived through the agony of the infliction of all these wounds. (R 2938-2939).

No realistic argument can be advanced for the proposition that this brutal crime - which had the additional outrage of being committed on Christmas Eve - did not reflect an utter indifference to the suffering and anguish of the victim. Cheshire v. State, 568 So.2d 908 (Fla. 1990).

The HAC factor applies when a slow and painful method of killing is utilized and the victim has time to suffer the anguish of impending death. Tompkins v. State, 502 So.2d 415 (Fla. 1986) (victim strangled, fought for her life). The case at bar is similar to many in which the HAC factor applied:

In <u>Johnston v. State</u>, 497 So.2d 863 (Fla. 1986), the victim, an 83-year-old widow, was stabbed three times and strangled. Her death took several minutes, she struggled, and she was conscious and by extension suffered great pain. <u>Johnston</u> cites to similar killings in <u>Wright v. State</u>, 473 So.2d 1277 (Fla. 1985), and Quince v. State, 414 So.2d 185 (Fla. 1982).

In <u>Medina v. State</u>, 466 So.2d 1046 (Fla. 1985), the defendant stabbed the victim ten times, inflicting severe pain in a ten to thirty minute assault.

In Perry v. State, 522 So.2d 817 (Fla. 1988), the victim was repeatedly stabbed, beaten (about the head, particularly), and attempted to ward off the attack, thus incurring defensive wounds. The presence of defensive wounds was found to be important proof of the HAC factor, while the location of the attack (the "safety" of her home) added to the outrageous nature of the offense. (Here, the victim died at work, but on Christmas Eve). A similar result was obtained in <u>Dudley v. State</u>, 545 So.2d 857 (Fla. 1989). See also Atwater v. State, So.2d (Fla. 1993), 18 Fla.L.Weekly S496; Gilliam v. State, 582 So.2d 610 (Fla. 1991).

Mr. Ramirez contends that the HAC factor can only apply if the defendant had the express intent to torture the victim. He even implies that the victim added to her own suffering by trying to ward off the attack rather than laying down and dying. Clearly, however, the HAC factor was created by the Legislature to punish the suffering of the victim, not to protect the murderer from all but "intentional torture". Hitchcock v. State, 578 So.2d 685 (Fla. 1990). Thus, the utter indifference of Mr. Ramirez to the suffering of Mrs. Quinn and the presence of defensive wounds support the logical conclusion that the HAC factor applies. Cheshire, supra; Dudley, supra; Perry, supra, 17 Gilliam v. State, 582 So.2d 610 (Fla. 1991).

We must point out some interesting observations by Mr. Ramirez that relate to the other issues on appeal. At pp. 84-86, Ramirez opines that the victim might not have been conscious throughout the attack - thus enhancing the relevance of Dr. Wetli's testimony. See Johnston, supra. Ramirez also notes that Mrs. Quinn was not robbed, sexually assaulted or the "target of the robbery" - all factors that support the "avoid arrest" factor.

The murder of Mary Jane Quinn was clearly heinous, atrocious and cruel under any rational review of the record.

POINT VIII

THE JURY INSTRUCTION ON THE HAC FACTOR WAS PROPER AND THE ISSUE WAS NOT PRESERVED FOR APPELLATE REVIEW

charge conference the penalty phase the on instructions the trial court stated it would give the standard "HAC" instruction and the defense did not object (R 2420). After the charges were given to the jury no additional objection was aired (R 2486). Thus, the Appellant's claims of error under Maynard v. Cartwright, 186 U.S. 536 (1988), and Stringer v. Black, 503 U.S. ____, 117 L.Ed.2d 367 (1992), 18 are not preserved and are not available to him on appeal. Sochor v. Florida, 504 U.S. , 119 L.Ed.2d 326 (1992); Atkins v. Singletary, 622 So.2d 951 (Fla. 1993); Rose v. State, 617 So.2d 291 (Fla. 1993); Sims v. Singletary, 622 So.2d 980 (Fla. 1993); Ferguson v. Singletary, So.2d (Fla. 1993), 19 Fla.L.Weekly S101. Kennedy v. Singletary, 602 So.2d 1285 (Fla. 1992)

Without abandoning this procedural defense, three factors are worth mentioning.

First, the instruction at bar is $\underline{\text{not}}$ the instruction condemned in Espinosa.

Second, the murder at bar was so clearly heinous, atrocious and cruel that this factor would have been properly applied regardless of the form of the jury instruction, rendering any

No claim is raised under <u>Espinosa v. Florida</u>, 505 U.S. ____, 120 L.Ed.2d 854 (1992), or <u>Sochor v. Florida</u>, 504 U.S. ____, 119 L.Ed.2d 326 (1992).

"error" harmless. Gorby v. State, ___ So.2d ___ (Fla. 1993), 18
Fla.L.Weekly S263; cf. Thompson v. State, 619 So.2d 261 (Fla. 1993), see also Clemons v. Mississippi, 494 U.S. 738 (1990).

Third, neither Stringer, supra, nor Maynard, supra, apply to Florida 19 because in Florida, by statute, the jury is neither the sentencer nor the co-sentencer and the jury does not report any specific findings of fact. Bertolotti v. Dugger, 883 F.2d 1503 (11th Cir. 1989); Johnson v. Singletary, 991 F.2d 663 (11th Cir. 1993); Clark v. Dugger, 559 So.2d 192 (Fla. 1989); Porter v. Dugger, 559 So.2d 201 (Fla. 1989); Ventura v. State, 560 So.2d 217 (Fla. 1990).

Thus, Mr. Ramirez' unpreserved jury instruction claim is not a basis for appellate relief.

POINT IX

THE TRIAL COURT DID NOT ERR IN WEIGHING MITIGATING EVIDENCE

The defendant presented very minimal evidence in mitigation, summarized as follows:

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